1982

Bruce Michael Larner v. Mary Lynn Hill : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF KIND OF CASE

This is an action to enforce the provisions of the Uniform Child Custody Jurisdiction Act.

DISPOSITION IN LOWER COURT

The District Court found that it had jurisdiction to modify a Colorado Decree as to matters pertaining to the custody and support of Stephen Michael Larner and Julianne Michelle Larner. The Court also found that it had no such jurisdiction in the case of a third child, Joseph Scott Larner.

RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

The Appellant seeks the reversal of the Order as to Stephen Michael Larner and Julianne Michelle Larner and

asks the Court to refer the matter to the State of Colorado for trial.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

The Defendant (Appellant), Mary Lynn Larner Hill, is the custodial parent of Stephen Michael Larner, born March 13, 1968, and of Joseph Scott Larner, born May 29, 1972, under the terms of a Decree of Dissolution of Marriage entered by the District Court of Jefferson County, Colorado, on March 17, 1980. The Plaintiff (Respondent), Michael Bruce Larner, is the custodial parent, under the same Decree, for Julianne Michelle Larner, born May 10, 1969.

The Separation Agreement incorporated in the Colorado Decree required that the Plaintiff and the Defendant should exercise joint custody over the minor children, "Provided, however, that until such time as the parties should agree otherwise, or until further order of this court, the wife shall have the physical care, custody and control of Stephen Michael Larner and Joseph Scott Larner, and the husband shall have the physical care, custody and control of Julianne Michelle Larner" (R. 7, 8).

Joseph Scott Larner came to Utah in "early July" of 1981 (R. 102).¹ On July 3, 1981, the Plaintiff filed a

1. And was to have been returned to Colorado on August 1, 1981 (R. 102, 103). The child was still in Utah when the matter was heard on August 25, 1981 (R. 107).

Verified Complaint with the Third District Court. The Complaint was signed by the Plaintiff's attorney, Brian M. Barnard, on July 1, 1981 (R. 4) and was verified by the Plaintiff, Bruce Michael Larner, the following day, July 2, 1981 (R. 5). The Verified Complaint asserted that "All three minor children are currently residing with the Plaintiff, Bruce Michael Larner, in Salt Lake City Utah" (R. 3). The Complaint demanded that the Court grant full faith and credit to the Colorado Decree; that it assume jurisdiction; that it enter an order of temporary custody in favor of the Plaintiff, modify the Colorado Decree, grant custody of the children to the Plaintiff and terminate child support. A Notice of Trial was filed on July 10, 1981.

On July 29, 1981, the Defendant entered a special appearance and objected to the jurisdiction of the Utah Court.² On August 19, 1981, the Plaintiff mailed a Motion for Temporary Order and Notice of Hearing (R. 30), moving the Court to enter

2. On July 23, 1981, before the Defendant's special appearance and objections to jurisdiction could be filed, Defendant's counsel appeared before the Law and Motion Division of the Third District Court, Jay E. Banks presiding, to object to the Plaintiff's Order to Show Cause dated July 8, 1981. The Order to Show Cause was filed with the District Court on July 20, 1981 (R. 19) and set for hearing on the civil calendar on July 23rd. The Plaintiff did not appear in support of his claim and the Order to Show Cause was dismissed (R. 27 28).

an Order granting him the temporary custody of the three minor children pending a resolution of the matter on its merits.³

On October 1, 1981, after a hearing on August 25, 1981, and over the Defendant's objections (R. 99), Judge Ernest F. Baldwin, Jr., concluded that the two older children were residing in Utah at the time of the hearing (R. 106), and found that Joseph Scott Larner was residing in Colorado (R. 106, 107). The Court ordered that the temporary custody of Stephen Michael Larner be awarded to the non custodial parent, Bruce Michael Larner, and taken from the custodial parent, Mary Lynn Hill. The Court ordered that Joseph Scott Larner be "returned to Colorado" (R. 108) pending "further proceedings" (R. 107).

On October 16, 1981, after a hearing on the Defendant's Objections to Jurisdiction on October 1, 1981, the Court entered an Order holding it had jurisdiction to modify the Colorado Decree, with regard to the custody and support of Stephen Michael Larner and Julianne Michelle Larner. The Court found that it had no jurisdiction to modify the Colorado Decree in the case of Joseph Scott Larner (R. 43).

3. On August 4, 1981, the Plaintiff filed a Notice of Hearing that purported to continue the Hearing on the Order to Show Cause set for July 23, 1981, until August 25, 1981. The Order to Show Cause had been dismissed before the Plaintiff's Notice was filed.

The Court overruled the objections of the Defendant to its jurisdiction, and ordered the Defendant to file an Answer to the Plaintiff's Complaint within ten days. The Defendant filed an Answer and Counterclaim and a Petition for an Intermediate Appeal.

ARGUMENT

POINT I

THE PROCEEDINGS IN THE LOWER COURT VIOLATED PROCEDURAL REQUIREMENTS.

The Notice of the Hearing on Plaintiff's Motion for Temporary Custody (R. 30, 31) did not give the notice required by the provisions of 78-45c-5 U.C.A., or by the provisions of Rule 6, subsections (d) and (e), of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure. Furthermore, the Motion violated the requirements of Rule 4 of the Rules of the Third District Court, effective July 1, 1981. The Notice of the Hearing was insufficient, whether the opposing party was out of state or in, and the matter belonged on the trial calendar and not on the Order to Show Cause calendar. It was improper, under the rule, to raise the issue of temporary custody by means of an Order to Show Cause.⁴ The Motion for Temporary Order (R. 30) was a

4. Rule 4 (h), "Orders to Show Cause in the Domestic Relations Division may be used only for enforcement purposes, not modification. Any matter which will require longer than 15 minutes for evidence and argument shall not be placed on the regular Order to Show Cause Calendar. Counsel must obtain a setting on the regular domestic trial calendar as a special setting from the Domestic Relations Judge for such hearings."

Motion in place of the previously dismissed Order to Show Cause (R. 19), and, in effect, a Petition for the Temporary Modification of a Foreign Decree.⁵

When it awarded the Plaintiff the temporary custody of Stephen Michael Larner, on August 25, 1981, and asserted jurisdiction (R. 102, 106), the District Court made a precipitous decision, on minimal facts, without sufficient consideration. The Court ruled on the issue of temporary custody, asserting that it had jurisdiction to do so, before it heard argument on the Defendant's Objections to Jurisdiction, more than a month later, on October 1, 1981. No testimony was taken before the Court awarded temporary custody to the Plaintiff,

5. The Motion did not comply with the Rule of Court. Rule 4 (g),

"Whenever a change or modification in the terms and conditions of a Decree of Divorce is sought, the issue shall be raised by the filing of a Petition for Modification and service of said petition upon the opposing party. Counsel shall take steps to have the matter set for hearing on the regular Domestic Relations trial calendar, if it can be tried in one-half day or less, or on the civil trial calendar if more than one-half day is required. No Petition for Modification shall be placed on any Order to Show Cause calendar without permission from the judge presiding in the Domestic Relations Division. No request for a change or modification of a Decree shall be raised by way of an Order to Show Cause. Any modification issues improperly included in an Order to Show Cause will be summarily stricken by the Court."

The Complaint of the Plaintiff (presumably the equivalent of a Petition for Modification), had been noticed for trial on December 9, 1981 (R. 18).

or at any time before, although the Defendant was physically present in the courtroom (R. 107). The preliminary ruling on the issue of temporary custody, before the Court heard the Defendant's objections to the exercise of its jurisdiction, was in effect a modification of the Colorado Decree.⁶ The Court failed to take the time to accord the matter a factual hearing on the right calendar, and to render a decision after a hearing on the merits.

POINT II

THE ORDERS OF THE LOWER COURT VIOLATE THE
EXPRESS PROVISIONS OF THE UTAH UNIFORM
CHILD CUSTODY JURISDICTION ACT.

The Utah Uniform Child Custody Jurisdiction Act, section 78-45c-15, provides as follows:

"(1) If a court of another state has made a custody decree, a court of this state shall not modify that decree unless (a) it appears to the court of this state that the court which rendered the decree does not now have jurisdiction under jurisdictional prerequisites substantially in accordance with this act or has declined to assume jurisdiction to modify the decree and (b) the court of this state has jurisdiction." (Emphasis supplied.)

6. And a "custody determination" under the Uniform Child Custody Jurisdiction Act. See: In Re Custody of Bechard (1978 Colo App) 577 P.2d 778. (In Bechard a modification of visitation rights was held to be a custody determination under the Act.) See also: Bahr v. Golonski (1977) 80 Wis 2d 72, 257 N.W. 2d 869.

The language of section 78-45c-15 (1) is mandatory. The legislature, which passed the Uniform Act, made it so. The statute, as applied to the facts in this case, provides that our Court shall not modify the Decree entered by the District Court in Jefferson County, Colorado, unless Colorado lacks jurisdiction, or declines to assume jurisdiction to modify its own decree, and unless Utah also has jurisdiction.

While our Court does not appear to have interpreted the provisions of 78-45c-15, Colorado, which has the Uniform Act, has ruled on the provision a number of times. Colorado would not permit the Plaintiff to do what Judge Baldwin permitted him to do in Utah, if the circumstances of these parties were reversed; if Mrs. Larner lived in Utah and a Utah Decree had entered. The Colorado Supreme Court held that the Uniform Child Custody Jurisdiction Act attempted to limit custody determination jurisdiction to only one state. The Act, it said, reflects a general policy in favor of the court rendering the original custody decree.⁷

7. See: Fry v. Ball (1975 Colo) 544 P.2d 402; Brown v. District Court of Denver (1976 Colo) 557 P.2d 384; Young v. District Court of County of Boulder (1977 Colo) 570 P.2d 249; Woodhouse v. District Court of Seventeenth Judicial Dist. (1978 Colo) 587 P.2d 1199; Re Custody of Glass (1975) 36 Colo App 91, 537 P.2d 1092; In Re Custody of Thomas (1975) 36 Colo App 96, 537 P.2d 1095; In Re Custody of Zumbrun (1978 Colo App) 592 P.2d 16.

The Colorado Decree was entered on March 17, 1980, only slightly more than one year before the Plaintiff filed his Complaint in these proceedings (R. 2). Colorado has jurisdiction under jurisdictional prerequisites that are in accordance with Utah's Uniform Act. The Defendant is a resident of the State of Colorado (R. 2). Colorado is the home state of Joseph Scott Lerner (R. 106, 107). The "Family Residence" was located in Jefferson County, Colorado (R. 10, 11), and the original divorce proceedings were filed there (R. 6).

Judge Baldwin concluded that Colorado and Utah had "joint jurisdiction," and said the issue involved was one of "venue." The Plaintiff's counsel, Mr. Barnard, agreed that that was so (R. 106). It would appear that the Court and Plaintiff's counsel misunderstood the implications of that conclusion insofar as it pertained to the application of the principles of the Uniform Child Custody Jurisdiction Act.⁸

8. The dialogue is in the Record at page 100.

"MR. ALLRED: He has that custody in violation of the Colorado Court, Your Honor. The youngest child, Scott, was sent here on approximately July 1... The agreement of the parties was that on August 1st all of the children would return...a request was made for his (Joseph Scott Lerner's) return. It was never honored, so he is here at the present time in violation of the terms of his visitation agreement which is of course a violation of the Uniform Child Custody Act. Now the second...

THE COURT: Are you proceeding under the Uniform Child Custody Act?

MR. BARNARD: I have not pled that in my Complaint, at all, Your Honor.

THE COURT: I didn't think so." (Emphasis supplied).

Colorado has never declined to assume jurisdiction to modify its own Decree, and proceedings relating to the custody of the children are pending there, in the District Court for Jefferson County. The pendency of the proceedings in Colorado was called to the attention of Judge Baldwin, at the Hearing on August 25, 1981, by Mr. Barnard (R. 102).

The Colorado Court has jurisdiction. That fact is conceded here by all of the principals, including Plaintiff's counsel. The Colorado Court expressly reserved the power to modify the Decree by further Order (R. 7, 8). Given the facts in this case, the statute provides that a court of this state "shall not modify" a foreign decree.

POINT III

THE DEFENDANT DID NOT "VOLUNTARILY" SUBJECT
HERSELF TO THE JURISDICTION OF THE COURT
BY FILING AN ANSWER AND COUNTERCLAIM.

The filing of an Answer and Counterclaim (R. 49) was involuntary. The District Court ordered the Defendant to file an Answer, within ten days, and the Defendant ran the risk of being defaulted in the proceedings before the District Court, if she failed to file one.

The Appellate Advocacy Handbook for the Utah Supreme Court provides that, "The effect of the granting of an interlocutory appeal is to stay action in the trial court that would be inconsistent with the appeal until the Supreme

Court's disposition." (See page 6) Nothing, however, pertains to the period between the filing of the Petition and the granting of the Interlocutory Appeal. Furthermore, at that point in time, before the Supreme Court has determined whether or not to entertain the appeal, the matter is still squarely before the District Court.

It cannot be said that because the Defendant complied with an Order entered over her objections, and those of her counsel, that she has "voluntarily subjected" herself to the jurisdiction of the Third District Court. The Answer and Counterclaim is, moreover, not to be considered a matter of record on this appeal. That was the judgment of this Court when it entered an Order on January 18, 1982, correcting the record on appeal.

POINT IV

THE ORDERS OF THE LOWER COURT VIOLATE THE
PURPOSE AND POLICY OF THE UNIFORM CHILD
CUSTODY JURISDICTION ACT.

The District Court's assumption of jurisdiction violated the general purpose provisions of 78-45c-1 of the Utah Uniform Child Custody Jurisdiction Act and subverted the policy of the uniform legislation.

The Uniform Act meant to avoid jurisdiction competition in matters of child custody. The Act was designed to deter

the unilateral removal of children from one state to another, in order to obtain custody awards. The legislation attempted to avoid conflict between the courts of different states in matters involving child custody.

The lower court acted in total disregard of the provisions of the Uniform Act, and the mandatory requirements of the new law were violated with impunity. The rulings of the court encouraged jurisdiction competition and created a judicial conflict that has not been resolved. The lower court failed to facilitate the enforcement of the Colorado Decree. It encouraged the litigation of a custody decision made in Colorado, by the parties, and ratified by the Colorado Court. It violated the policy that favors the court that rendered the original decree, and extended custody determination jurisdiction beyond the parameters of the Act. The court failed to ensure that the litigation take place where the "Family Residence" was, where all of the children and their parents lived together as a family, and where the family shared a social, educational, employment, religious and domestic history.

The parties initially agreed on a forum, Colorado,⁹ (R. 7, 8) which was a more appropriate forum than the State

9. For the legal implications of that agreement, see 78-45c-7 (d).

of Utah was, for the resolution of the pending controversy.¹⁰
If the action of the trial court had not been enjoined by
reason of the mandatory provisions of the Uniform Act, the
lower court should have declined jurisdiction for reasons re-
lated to venue. See: 78-45c-7.

CONCLUSION

The rulings of the lower court should be reversed.
A reversal would obviate the necessity for further proceedings
dealing with the same subject matter in two separate juris-
dictions. A ruling for the Defendant would save time, elimi-
nate expense, reduce inconvenience and avoid the duplication
and retrial of the same legal and factual issues. It would
also eliminate the jurisdictional conflict that now exists
between the courts.

This case raises questions pertaining to the Uni-
form Child Custody Jurisdiction Act that are of general con-
cern, and the decision may be expected to have broad applica-
tion. The facts afford the Court an opportunity to uphold
the provisions and policy of the Uniform Act.