1982

Bruce Michael Larner v. Mary Lynn Hill : Brief of Respondent

Utah Supreme Court

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

ARGUMENT

POINT I

ANY DEFECTS IN NOTICE DID NOT DEPRIVE
THE COURT OF JURISDICTION

The Defendant alleges that the hearing upon the

Plaintiff's Motion for a Temporary order was improper in that there was not ten days notice given under the Uniform Child Custody Jurisdiction Act (U.C.A. §78-45c-5, 1953), and there was not eight days notice given under the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure (Rule 6(d) & 6(e)). The Defendant further objects that a motion seeking a temporary order should have been on the trial calendar and not on the order to show cause calendar pursuant to Local Rule 4(h) of the Third Judicial District Court.

These objections do not go to the jurisdiction of the Court, but are minor procedural matters.

On July 13, 1981 the Defendant, Mary Lynn Hill formerly Lerner, was personally served with the Plaintiff's Complaint and Summons. (T.R. p. 22) That Complaint in part requested that the Third Judicial District Court "issue a temporary order granting full custody of the three minor children to the Plaintiff during the pendency of this action, subject to the reasonable visitation rights of the Defendant as provided in the original Decree." (T.R. p. 4)

On July 13, 1981 the Defendant was personally served with an Order to Show Cause (T.R. p. 20) directing her to appear before the Third District Court on July 23, 1981 to consider the Plaintiff's request for an order granting

temporary custody of the three minor children to the Plaintiff during the pendency of the action.

The Plaintiff's Order to Show Cause was dismissed on July 23, 1981 at the insistence of the Defendant's counsel because the Defendant had not received ten (10) days notice of that hearing pursuant to U.C.A. §78-45c-5 (1953 as amended). (T.R. pp. 27-28).

Defendant's counsel was mailed notice on August 3, 1981 that a hearing was to be held on August 25, 1981 on the Plaintiff's Order to Show Cause seeking temporary custody. (T.R. p. 29) That notice was also mailed to the Defendant in Colorado on August 3, 1981. (T.R. p. 29)

On August 19, 1981 the Plaintiff filed a Motion for Temporary Order seeking custody of the three minor children. (T.R. pp. 30-31) That Motion sought the same temporary relief as Plaintiff sought in the Complaint and in the Order to Show Cause. Notice of the hearing on the Motion for Temporary Custody was also mailed to Defendant's Counsel on August 19, 1981. (T.R. pp. 30-31) Defendant and her counsel appeared on August 25, 1981. (T.R. p. 98) Clearly the Defendant and her counsel had actual notice of the matter of temporary custody being brought before the Court on August 25, 1981 in compliance with U.C.A., §78-

45c-5(1) 1953. The focus of that section is on notice in a manner reasonably calculated to give actual notice.

This Court has previously ruled that the time limits of Rule 6(d) of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure are not cast in stone but may be dispensed with in appropriate cases.

Plaintiff was entitled to a fair notice and an effective opportunity to controvert any facts adduced in support of defendant's motion. The five-day provision of Rule 6(d), U.R.C.P. is not a hard and fast rule, and the trial court may dispense with technical compliance thereof if there be satisfactory proof that a party had actual notice and time to prepare to meet the questions raised by the motion of an adversary.

Jensen v. Eames, 519 P.2d 236, 238, citing Marshal Durbin Farms, Inc. v. National Farmers Organization, Inc. (CA 5th, 1971), 445 F.2d 353, 358.

See also, Herron v. Herron, 255 F.2d 589, 593 (5th Cir. 1958).

The Appellant makes no claim that she was in any way prejudiced by the inadequacy of time to prepare. Any such prejudice is not apparent from the record which indicates that the Appellant knew for six and a half weeks prior to the hearing that the Respondent sought an order granting him temporary custody.

Matters of child custody to be heard under the Utah Uniform Child Custody Jurisdiction Act (U.C.A. §78-45c-

24, 1953) are to be given calendar priority and handled expeditiously.

The Appellant cites Rule 4 of the Local Rules of the Third Judicial District Court, effective July 1, 1981 for the proposition that the Order to Show Cause calendar may be used only for enforcement purposes, and claims that a motion seeking a temporary custody order should have been on the trial calendar.

The Appellant is in error as to the usage of Orders to Show Cause on the Domestic Relations calendar of the Salt Lake County Third Judicial District Court. Orders to Show Cause are routinely used to secure temporary orders in domestic relations matters for temporary custody, temporary child support and alimony, restraining orders, etc. Those are not enforcement matters, but prospective temporary relief. The Order to Show Cause calendar is the domestic relations law and motion calendar. Under the Appellant's interpretation of Local Rule 4, litigants would be precluded from using the Order to Show Cause calendar to secure temporary relief in pending divorce actions.

The Plaintiff had set a trial date on the Complaint for a full hearing on its merits for December 9, 1981 but sought temporary relief by way of a custody order pending

that hearing and trial. The only available forum was the Domestic Relations Law and Motion and Order to Show Cause calendar.¹

Any errors of the Court below with regard to the notice given or the court calendar are minor procedural matters which do not go to the question of jurisdiction. Those are harmless errors and are not errors that this Court should review unless prejudice resulted. This Court granted Appellant's petition for an interlocutory appeal to consider a question regarding jurisdiction, not minor technical procedural errors.

The Appellant had sufficient notice of the proceedings and the temporary relief sought by the Plaintiff such that the Appellant cannot claim any prejudice or denial of due process.

The Utah Rules of Civil Procedure provide:

No error. . .or defect in any ruling or order or in anything done or omitted by the court or by any of the parties, is ground for granting a

¹The Utah Rules of Civil Procedure make no provision for orders to show cause; although used throughout the state court system, orders to show cause appear to have developed and are used differently in each judicial district. Local Rule 4 of the Third District Court is an attempt to give some direction and regulate the use of orders to show cause in domestic relations matters in that district. Respondent's counsel would urge this Court to consider adopting uniform state rules for the use and issuance of orders to show cause.

new trial or otherwise disturbing a judgment or order, unless refusal to take such action appears to the court inconsistent with substantial justice. The court at every stage of the proceeding must disregard any error or defect in the proceeding which does not affect the substantial rights of the parties. (Rule 61)

The Appellant makes no claim that the conduct of the Court below in hearing the matter when and how it did was "inconsistent with substantial justice" nor that it affected "the substantial rights of the parties."

The burden is on the Appellant to show that the error was prejudicial to her case. Burton v. Z.C.M.I., 249 P.2d 514, 518 (1952); see also, Bell vs. Swift & Co., 283 F.2d 407, 408 (5th Cir. 1960).

The Fifth Circuit Court of Appeals stated in considering the question of harmless error:

A lawsuit is not so rule-bound that one side wins whenever the other side breaks a rule. To succeed in an appeal based on an infraction of the rules, the appellant must show that the infraction was a substantial error prejudicing the appellant's case.

Bell v. Swift & Co., 283 F.2d 407, 408 (1960)

The Appellant has neither alleged nor shown any prejudice resulting from the notice or calendar problem, and both claims should be dismissed as harmless error.

POINT II

APPELLANT PRESENTED NO FACTS
OR EVIDENCE TO THE COURT BELOW

The Appellant alleges that the Court below acted based "on minimal facts" making a "precipitous decision." When the Court ruled upon the Plaintiff's Motion for Temporary Custody and upon the Defendant's Motion to Object to Jurisdiction the only evidence before the Court was the Verified Complaint of the Plaintiff.

The Appellant had been personally served with a copy of the verified Complaint on July 13, 1981 and had ample opportunity prior to the August 25th and October 1st hearings to respond with evidence but chose not to do so.

After the Court made its oral ruling during the hearing of October 1, 1981 counsel for the Appellant then requested that the Court withhold a ruling and allow him to submit evidence by way of an affidavit. At the time the Appellant's Motion to Object to Jurisdiction had been pending more than two months (T.R. p. 25); the court declined to allow the submission of additional evidence after it had already made its ruling. (T.R. p. 125)

The Appellant claims that the Court below acted precipitously and on minimal facts in deciding that the Utah

court had jurisdiction over the two older minor children. That same decision included a determination that the Utah court did not have jurisdiction over the youngest child, Joseph Scott. The facts were obviously sufficient and the decision non-precipitous with regard to that child for we did not hear the Appellant complain about the decision to decline jurisdiction.

The Utah Uniform Child Custody Jurisdiction Act provides for expedited hearings when there is a question of jurisdiction (U.C.A. §78-45c-24, 1953 as amended). Rather than expediting matters and resolving the issue of jurisdiction, however, the Appellant did not request a hearing in the Court below on her Motion to Object to Jurisdiction. The matter was heard only upon the insistence of the Plaintiff's counsel. (T.R. p. 33)

The Appellant objected to jurisdiction but failed to present any evidence with regard to jurisdiction and failed to notice her objection for hearing before the Court. It appears that the Motion to Object to Jurisdiction was interposed for the purpose of delaying the filing of an answer to allow the appellant to commence a second action in Colorado and not to seriously challenge the jurisdiction of the Court.

POINT III

THE LOWER COURT ACTED WITHIN THE PURPOSE
AND POLICY, LETTER AND SPIRIT OF THE UTAH
UNIFORM CHILD CUSTODY JURISDICTION ACT

The Utah Uniform Child Custody Jurisdiction Act, (hereinafter called the "UCCJA" or the "Act"), U.C.A. §78-45c-14, (1953) provides as follows:

"(1) If a court of another state has made a custody decree, a court of this state shall not modify that decree, unless (a) it appears to the court of this state that the court which rendered the decree does not now have jurisdiction under jurisdictional prerequisites substantially in accordance with this act or has declined to assume jurisdiction to modify the decree and (b) the court of this state has jurisdiction." (Emphasis supplied.)

The threshold question is, "Did it appear to the Court below that the Colorado court did not have jurisdiction under the jurisdictional prerequisites substantially in accordance with the UCCJA?" If it appeared Colorado had jurisdiction, then the mandatory language of U.C.A. §78-45c-14 (1953) applies; but if it appeared that Colorado did not have jurisdiction under those jurisdictional prerequisites, then the Third Judicial District Court was proper and correct in taking jurisdiction.

What are the "jurisdictional prerequisites substantially in accordance with this act" such that Colorado no longer

has jurisdiction and Utah has jurisdiction? We must look to the applicable sections of the act:

(1) A court of this state which is competent to decide child custody matters has jurisdiction to make a child custody determination by initial or modification decree if the conditions as set forth in any of the following paragraphs are met:

(a) This state (i) is the home state of the child at the time of commencement of the proceeding, or (ii) had been the child's home state within six months before commencement of the proceeding. . .

(b) If it is in the best interest of the child that a court of this state assume jurisdiction because (i) the child and his parents, or the child and at least one contestant, have a significant connection with this state, and (ii) there is available in this state substantial evidence concerning the child's present or future care, protection, training, and personal relationships.

U.C.A. §78-45c-3 (1953)

The term "home state" as used in the foregoing section is defined as:

the state in which the child immediately preceding the time involved lived with his parents, a parent or a person acting as parent, for at least six consecutive months. . . U.C.A. §78-45c-2(5) 1953.

Did the Colorado court in July or August 1981 have the jurisdictional prerequisites substantially in accordance with the Utah Statute? The evidence presented to the trial court clearly shows that Judge Baldwin properly ruled that Colorado did not retain jurisdiction.

Utah was the "home state" for Stephen Michael and Julianne Michelle; they had lived in Utah for more than the

required six months, actually more than one year. (T.R. pp. 2-3) Colorado was not their "home state". Thus, Colorado did not have jurisdiction over the two oldest children under Subsection (a) of U.C.A. 78-45c-3 (1) (1953).

Neither did Colorado have jurisdiction over the two older children under Subsection (b) of that statute. In their comments to the equivalent provision in the Uniform Act, the Uniform Law Commissioners stated:

[This provision] perhaps more than any other provision of the Act requires that it be interpreted in the spirit of the legislative purposes expressed in section 1.

9 U.L.A. §3, Commissioners' Notes, at 124 (1979)

Section 1 was enacted in Utah as U.C.A. §78-45c-1 (1953).

That section states, in part, that the express purpose of the UCCJA is to

assure that litigation concerning the custody of a child take place ordinarily in the state with which the child and his family have the closest connection and where significant evidence concerning his care, protection, training, and personal relationships is most readily available. . . .
U.C.A. §78-45c-1(c) (1953 as amended) (emphasis supplied)

The Commissioners further commented as follows:

Jurisdiction exists only if it is in the child's interest, not merely the interest of convenience of the feuding parties, to determine custody in a particular state. The interest of the child is served when the forum has optimum access to relevant evidence about the child and family. The submission of the parties to a forum, perhaps for the

purposes of divorce, is not sufficient without additional factors establishing closer ties with the state. 9 U.L.A. §3, Commissioners' Notes, at 124 (1979).

The facts and evidence presented to the trial court amply demonstrated that the two children over whom the court asserted jurisdiction had maximum contact with Utah and minimum contact with Colorado at the time of the hearing.

The Plaintiff and the two children had been living in Utah for a significant period of time, over one year. The children were enrolled in school in Utah. The Plaintiff's Complaint established that he had a new wife and home in Salt Lake City and that his wife was willing, able and anxious to help care for the minor children. (T.R. p. 3) The Plaintiff's Complaint established that there had been a substantial change of circumstances of the parties. (T.R. p. 4). Those changes or a substantial number of them occurred in Utah. Obviously, substantial evidence concerning the present and future care, protection, training and personal relationships of the children was most readily available in Utah.

The Court below ordered that a custody evaluation be performed in Utah (T.R. p. 42). Inherent in such a ruling is a finding that there is substantial evidence

available in Utah with regard to the best interest of the minor children. Indeed, counsel for the Appellant asked the Court below to order that this Utah performed evaluation be used in a proceeding in Colorado regarding custody. (T.R. pp. 123-124) Counsel for the Appellant thus conceded that there was significant evidence available in Utah which was necessary for the proper determination of custody and the best interest of the minor children in conformance with the jurisdictional prerequisites of U.C.A. §78-45c-3(1)(b)(ii) (1953 as amended).

Since the children and their father had not resided in Colorado for over one year, it follows that they had a less significant connection with that state and that there was far less evidence concerning the children available in that state. There was no evidence countering this compelling inference. Indeed, the uncontrovered evidence showed that the Defendant intended to leave Colorado soon, thus eliminating any significant connection or ties with that state.

The Appellant argues in her brief that the exercise of jurisdiction by the Utah court violated a policy of favoring the court that issued the initial decree. Under the UCCJA, however, it is clear that to the extent such a policy exists, it applies only where the foreign court still

retains jurisdiction as defined in the Act. Further, such a policy is always superceded by and must yield to the Act's pervasive policy of assuring that adjudications regarding child custody take place where the best interests of the child may most readily be ascertained. U.C.A. §78-45c-1(c) (1953); 9 U.L.A. §3, Commissioner's Notes at 124, (1979).

In other jurisdictions that have enacted the Uniform Act the cases are numerous in which courts have asserted jurisdiction to modify foreign child custody decrees. In Settle vs. Settle, 559 P.2d 962 (Ore. 1976), the court modified a foreign decree, changing custody of the children to their mother stating:

the requirement of the availability of "substantial evidence" should be understood to require optimum access to relevant evidence. It appears that at the time of the commencement of the proceeding in Oregon, Indiana, the state from which the children had been absent for 18 months, no longer had optimum access to relevant evidence. Id. at 966.

Similarly, in Slidell vs. Valentine, 298 N.W. 2d 599 (Iowa 1980), where the child and his mother had been absent for three years from the state that granted custody to the father, the court in the "new" state modified the foreign decree, and granted custody to the mother.

Whether an Iowa court has jurisdiction to modify an earlier out of state decree turns first

upon whether that court has lost or declined its pre-existing jurisdiction.

* * *

One purpose of the jurisdictional provisions of the act is to emphasize "maximum, rather than minimum contact with the state."

* * *

William had not lived in Florida for three years, and the nexus between him and the state of Florida falls short of the "significant connection" required for the Florida court to assume jurisdiction under that alternative. Id. at 602-604.

See also, Grubs vs. Ross, 614 P.2d 1225 (Ore. 1980); Smith vs. Smith, 594 P.2d 1292 (Ore. 1979); Ellis vs. Nickerson, 604 P.2d 518 (Wash. 1979). Indeed, many courts have declined to exercise jurisdiction to modify their own child custody decrees in favor of other states with which the children or the parties have established new ties. See e.g., Schlumpf vs. Superior Court, County of Trinity, 145 Cal. Rptr. 190 (1978) Clark vs. Superior Court, County of Mendocino, 140 Cal. Rptr. 709 (1977).

Thus, the facts and evidence before the court below indicate that Colorado did not retain jurisdiction over the two older children under U.C.A 78-45c-3 (1953) to modify its decree. Conversely, since Utah was the "home state" of these two children and they had maximum contact with the state of Utah, the court properly asserted its jurisdiction over them. There had been a substantial change

in circumstances and passage of time since the issuance of the Colorado decree. With the Defendant's own acquiescence and approval, the two older children severed their ties with the state of Colorado and established a significant connection with the state of Utah.

Using the same jurisdictional prerequisites of the UCCJA the court below determined that Colorado did have jurisdiction over the youngest minor child, Joseph Scott. Colorado was the home state where that child had been domiciled for several years; the child had been residing and attending school in Colorado; there was a significant connection between Colorado and the child; there was substantial evidence concerning the child's custody and care available in Colorado. Therefore, under U.C.A. §78-45c-3 and §78-45c-14 (1953 as amended) the Utah court declined jurisdiction. Neither party to this action has appealed that decision of the Court.

Appellant makes mention in her brief of a proceeding pending in Colorado to modify the Decree of Dissolution and grant custody of all three minor children to the Appellant. (Appellant's Brief, p. 10) That proceeding was instituted by the Appellant in Colorado after the Plaintiff instituted this action in Utah. (T.R. pp. 101-102, p. 117) Such

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